

CAMBRIDGE LICENSE COMMISSION HEARING

CITY OF CAMBRIDGE

IN RE: LICENSE COMMISSION HEARING

LICENSE COMMISSION BOARD MEMBERS:

ACTING CHAIR ARTHUR GOLDBERG

CHIEF GERALD REARDON

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS

STAFF: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT

---

AT: Michael J. Lombardi Building  
Basement Conference Room  
831 Massachusetts Avenue  
Cambridge, Massachusetts 02139

DATE: Tuesday, January 5, 2016

TIME: 6:10 p.m.

\_\_\_\_\_  
REPORTERS, INC.

CAPTURING THE OFFICIAL RECORD  
617.786.7783 - [www.reportersinc.com](http://www.reportersinc.com)

## INDEX OF AGENDA

<u>AGENDA MATTERS</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
APPLICATION: ARAMARK CORPORATION D/B/A ARAMARK & TAKEDA	4
APPLICATION: ROXTAR FOODS LTD. D/B/A THRESHER	11
APPLICATION: RESTAURANT ASSOCIATES, INC D/B/A WINTERGARDEN & NOVARTIS	23
APPLICATION: B&B RESTAURANT GROUP D/B/A PRIMO PIZZA & ROAST BEEF	24

P R O C E E D I N G S

January 5, 2016

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: This meeting is being recorded by audio and visual means.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: If anyone has a cell phone on, we would appreciate it if you turned it off.

Okay. This is the License Commission General Hearing, Tuesday, January 5, 2016. It is 6:10 p.m.

We're in the Michael J. Lombardi Building at 831 Mass Ave Basement Conference Room.

Before you are the Commissioners: Chair Arthur Goldberg, Chief Gerald Reardon and Commissioner Robert Haas. If anybody is here for Le's Sushi Bar that's been continued to January 19.

And the application of BonChon has been

continued to February 9.

**APPLICATION:  
ARAMARK CORPORATION  
D/B/A ARAMARK & TAKEDA**

The first matter is the application of Aramark Corporation doing business as Aramark & Takeda Pharmaceuticals, Samantha Smiley, Manager, has applied for a Common Victualer license at 300 Massachusetts Avenue. Said license, if granted, would allow food and non-alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, and consumed on said premises with a seating capacity of 32 and proposed operating hours from 7:00 a.m. until 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Hi.

SAMANTHA SMILEY: Hi.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Please have a seat. Could you state your names and spell your names for the stenographer, please?

SAMANTHA SMILEY: Samantha,

S-A-M-A-N-A-T-H-A, Smiley, S-M-I-L-E-Y.

TIMOTHY CONNELLY: Timothy Connelly,  
T-I-M-O-T-H-Y, C-O-N-N-E-L-L-Y.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Hi. Could you  
state why you're here and what you're looking  
for?

SAMANTHA SMILEY: Sure. We're looking  
for a common victualer license for our coffee bar  
on the top floor of Takeda Pharmaceuticals  
building at 300 Mass Ave, the new construction  
building.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Okay. And  
could you describe a little bit what you'd be  
serving and the food preparation area and so  
forth?

SAMANTHA SMILEY: Sure. It's going to be  
-- we proudly brew Starbuck's coffee bar, we'll  
have grab-and-go sandwiches, soups and salads  
along with like yogurt cups and soft beverages

which will all be bottled and -- yeah.

TIMOTHY CONNELLY: The food preparation, so we'll be at our current existing location that's across the street at 35 Lansdowne Street, that we also have a full kitchen that we operate there for Takeda Pharmaceuticals. They've extended their footprint in Cambridge and outgrown their current space and they've moved into 300 Mass Ave, and they want to bring food and beverage to their folks at that location as well.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: At 300 Mass Ave, are there refrigeration facilities?

SAMANTHA SMILEY: Yes, we have a holding room, it will have a warmer and refrigeration and the three-bay sink and a dishwasher.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Okay.

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: All the food prep will be done at Lansdowne Street?

TIMOTHY CONNELLY: Yes.

SAMANTHA SMILEY: Down the street.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: So that's already licensed and permitted?

TIMOTHY CONNELLY: We have been operating there since January of 2012, and with the Board of Health, Inspectional Services Division and stuff we did share plans with them. There will be no food preparation at 300, but we have the ability to wear, wash and have the ability to keep hot food, hot and cold food, cold.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: The seating capacity of 32 inside and 35 outside as well, is that correct?

SAMANTHA SMILEY: Yes.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Are there any members of the public here to speak about this?

None.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Do

you have the abutter notifications?

SAMANTHA SMILEY: I do.

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: Outdoor seating is that roof level?

SAMANTHA SMILEY: Yes, it is.

TIMOTHY CONNELLY: Sixth floor.

SAMANTHA SMILEY: Sixth floor of the building.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Are there any questions from the Board?

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: Talk about your experience as an operating manager and talk about your prior experience.

SAMANTHA SMILEY: I have been with Aramark four years now, I have been at Takeda that whole time and --

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: You

have been --

SAMANTHA SMILEY: I have been at Aramark and Takeda Pharmaceuticals the entire time, so we have been with them since we opened the account.

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: In a managerial capacity, or is this the first managerial position you're holding and you're transitioning over to this new site?

SAMANTHA SMILEY: It will be in addition.

TIMOTHY CONNELLY: Samantha reports to me.

I have been with Aramark just shy of 18 years and district manager for New England and have other operating businesses in Cambridge as well, with the Biogen on the other side of the Kendall Square, have multiple operations over there as well.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Okay.  
Anything from the Executive Director?

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: I think we're missing the abutter affidavit.

SAMANTHA SMILEY: I don't have that. Is that something I can get from you?

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: It would've been in that packet. You can take care of it in the office.

SAMANTHA SMILEY: Okay.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Do we have a motion or further questions?

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: No further questions.

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: No other questions.

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: I make a motion to approve the Aramark & Takeda Pharmaceuticals common victualer license at 300 Mass Ave with seating capacity of 32 seats and 32 outside seats from the hours as stated.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: 35 outside.

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: 35 and 32 in the room with the provision that the paperwork for Ms. Lint is followed up on.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Second.

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: Second.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: All in favor?

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: Aye.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Aye.

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: Aye.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Just see Chris in the office.

SAMANTHA SMILEY: Okay.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: You're approved subject to that document being filed.

TIMOTHY CONNELLY: I'm pretty sure it will be done tomorrow, first thing.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Great.

**APPLICATION:  
ROXTAR FOODS LTD. D/B/A THRESHER**

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Application: Roxtar Foods Limited d/b/a  
Thresher, Christopher Willis, Manager, has  
applied to transfer the All Alcoholic Beverages  
Restaurant License currently held by Shiv, Inc  
d/b/a India Castle, Mohinder Badwal, Manager, at  
924-928 Massachusetts Avenue. The applicant is  
applying for an Alteration of Licensed Premise  
Description. The proposed hours of operation are  
5:00 p.m. to 1:00 a.m. seven days per week with a  
seating capacity of 85.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Good evening.

Could you each of you state your name and  
spell your names for the stenographer, please?

CHRISTOPHER WILLIS: Christopher Willis,  
C-H-R-I-S-T-O-P-H-E-R, W-I-L-L-I-S.

PAMELA WILLIS: And Pamela, P-A-M-E-L-A,

last name Willis, W-I-L-L-I-S.

ATTY LESLEY ST. GERMAIN: Lesley,  
L-E-S-L-E-Y, St. Germain,  
S-T-period-G-E-R-M-A-I-N.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Thank you.  
Please go ahead.

ATTY LESLEY ST. GERMAIN: Chairman,  
Members of the Commission, Lesley St. Germain  
with McDermott, Quilty & Miller before you today  
seeking a license to continue to be operated at  
928 Massachusetts Avenue.

With me are the applicants, each owning  
half of the licensee, the proposed licensee  
entity, Christopher Willis and Pamela Willis.  
Christopher is also the proposed manager of  
record, and I'll get into his experience in just  
a moment.

I have with me the abutters notification.  
What we're seeking to operate is a new

American-style restaurant with an emphasis on Italian cuisine. We're seeking to open a restaurant that would appeal to the neighborhood. It would kind of be able to provide a fine dining or rustic fine dining experience in a more acceptable and less stuffy atmosphere.

They're seeking to operate seven days a week serving dinner beginning at 5:30 p.m. with a closing hour of 1:00 a.m.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: If I could interrupt for a minute. I believe on the application lunch was checked off, but the hours requested were 5:00 p.m. to 1:00 a.m. Is lunch to be considered?

ATTY LESLEY ST. GERMAIN: We don't know plan to open with lunch. We expect in potentially six months we would come back to the Board seeking the opportunity to open for brunch on the weekends.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: So at this time, you're not seeking lunch?

ATTY LESLEY ST. GERMAIN: At this time, we're not seeking lunch.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Go ahead.

ATTY LESLEY ST. GERMAIN: Of course. As I noted, we're seeking to open a neighborhood restaurant. Chris and Pam are actually going to be moving into the neighborhood. They lived in Cambridge previously, which is one of the reasons why they chose the specific location, and they're actually renovating a house at 318 Harvard. They're going to be right down the street.

And in addition to seeking to operate a successful business, they really want that business, and both that respect, and personally, invest in this community and be a really positive aspect of the community.

As far as Chris' experience as manager of

record, he has over ten years of experience in the restaurant industry, and specifically, in fine dining. He's worked in a number of capacities and places such as Cleo and Realto and has experience managing.

He worked in a managerial capacity for two years at a restaurant on Nantucket. He's familiar with all of the regulations of both the Commonwealth and of the City of Cambridge.

Pam, who will be working there, has significant experience in the restaurant industry in her own right.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Did those restaurants have alcohol, all alcohol licenses?

CHRISTOPHER WILLIS: Safolya (phonetic), where I was a manager, had just beer and wine. I worked in other capacities at restaurants with full liquor, but I have not actually managed a restaurant with full liquor.

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: But you were a manager of record for the beer and wine license?

ATTY LESLEY ST. GERMAIN: He was not manager of record, but he was operating in a managerial capacity.

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: Okay.

ATTY LESLEY ST. GERMAIN: So I believe if the Commission has any questions, that's the summary of what we're seeking.

We anticipate this being a successful operation.

Obviously, we see a need for this sort of establishment in the neighborhood, and we're hopeful and excited to join the community.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: You're looking to purchase an existing all alcohol license at that address?

ATTY LESLEY ST. GERMAIN: Yes, the

license will be remaining at that address and we entered into a purchase and sale agreement with the existing owner.

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: How much renovations will you be doing?

CHRISTOPHER WILLIS: We'll be doing mostly design work for three or four months, nothing structural.

PAMELA WILLIS: Moving the bar.

CHRISTOPHER WILLIS: Mostly decorative changes.

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: What about the kitchen?

CHRISTOPHER WILLIS: The kitchen --

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: You're redoing the kitchen?

CHRISTOPHER WILLIS: We're redoing the kitchen to the extent that we'll be taking out all the existing equipment and we'll be changing

the position of the vent a few feet towards the center of the room.

ATTY LESLEY ST. GERMAIN: As far as capacity, we're going to be reducing the capacity.

What is asked is a seating capacity of 85 and the current licensee has a capacity of 99.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Is any member of the public here to speak on this?

None.

Any other questions?

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: So if the kitchen is going to be a replacement or going to be -- you're going to get into the hood and so you're going to get into that new hood ordinance and relationship.

Do you have a fryolator as well?

CHRISTOPHER WILLIS: We do have a fryolator, yes, it's a relatively small one.

That's not a big --

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: Be conscious of the regulation on the hood venting, that's -- in the past five, six years, when you're doing that work.

CHRISTOPHER WILLIS: We have Harbor Foods who is going to be sort of spear-heading the whole kitchen renovation, so I think they're pretty good on that.

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: What is your expected construction time?

CHRISTOPHER WILLIS: So we're optimistically hoping to wrap things up in three or four months barring no unforeseen conditions.

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: What was your previous experience, a lot of Italian cuisine?

CHRISTOPHER WILLIS: When I was a manager, I was cooking rustic Italian food which

is essentially what we'll be doing sortve with some American accents.

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: No further questions.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Anything from the Executive Director?

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Yes, I did not see a business certificate in the packet that was sent over, and Indian Castle is going to have to get an updated certificate of good standing. It's outdated. The backgrounds are fine.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: So the manager would have to do the TIPS training?

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: 21 Proof as well.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: 21 Proof, okay.

Anything further?

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: Nothing further.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Do we have a motion?

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: I make a motion to approve Roxtar Foods Limited doing business as Thresher, Christopher Willis, manager, for the address at 924 through 928 Mass Ave with a seating capacity of 85 with operating hours of 5:00 p.m. to 1:00 a.m. seven days a week.

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: Did you say 5:00 p.m. or 5:30?

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: 5:00 p.m.

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: I thought you said 5:30.

ATTY LESLEY ST. GERMAIN: Chris, 5:00?

CHRISTOPHER WILLIS: 5:00, yes.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Do we have a second?

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: Second.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: All in favor?

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: Aye.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Aye.

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: Aye.

Three to nothing.

Congratulations.

**APPLICATION:  
RESTAURANT ASSOCIATES, INC  
D/B/A WINTERGARDEN & NOVARTIS**

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Application: Restaurant Associates, Inc doing business as Wintergarden & Novartis, William Unterstein, Manager, has applied for a Common Victualer license at 181 Massachusetts Avenue, Building 613. Said license, if granted, would allow food and non-alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, and consumed on said premises with a seating capacity of 210 and operating hours from 8:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m. Monday through

Friday.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Is anyone here for Restaurant Associates doing business as Wintergarden?

None.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: We might as well take care of the next matter.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: I assume no one is here for Restaurant Associates doing business as Wintergarden Coffee Bar.

Okay. Those will come off.

**APPLICATION:  
B&B RESTAURANT GROUP  
D/B/A PRIMO PIZZA & ROAST BEEF**

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:  
Application: B&B Restaurant Group, Inc doing business as Primo Pizza & Roast Beef, Adnan Budak, Manager, has applied for a common victualer license to be exercised at 783 Main Street. Said license, if granted, would allow

food and non-alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, and consumed on said premises with a seating capacity of 18. The hours of operation will be 11:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. seven days per week.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Good evening.

ADNAN BUDAK: Hi.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Could you state your name and spell it for the stenographer?

ADNAN BUDAK: Adnan, A-D-N-A-N, last name is Budak, B-U-D-A-K.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Good evening.

ADNAN BUDAK: Good evening.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Could you just describe briefly what you're applying for?

ADNAN BUDAK: Okay. I have been working the Primo Pizza since 2012, and then I decided to buy the pizza place, and then finally, I bought

it and I have experience more than ten years.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Okay. So it's -- you're basically continuing the operation of the existing restaurant there, is that correct?

ADNAN BUDAK: Exactly.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: The menu will be the same?

ADNAN BUDAK: The same, yeah.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: No alterations to the premises?

ADNAN BUDAK: No. Everything is the same. Just keep going the business.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Okay. You said that you worked there for the past ten years?

ADNAN BUDAK: Yes.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Do you have other restaurant experience?

ADNAN BUDAK: Yeah. I used to -- yes, I leased the Chicago Pizza only one year and also have I ten years experience in the restaurant. I know the business, the pizza and roast beef.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Do you have experience as a manager of a restaurant?

ADNAN BUDAK: Yes.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: And at which place?

ADNAN BUDAK: Chicago Pizza, 239 Mass Ave, Cambridge.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Okay. Okay. It's the same seating capacity as the existing place and the hours of operation are the same, is that correct?

ADNAN BUDAK: Yes.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Is anyone here from the public who wish to speak on this issue?

None.

Questions from Commissioners?

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: No questions.

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: No questions.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Executive Director?

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Nothing.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Do we have a motion?

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: I make a motion to approve B&B Restaurant Group doing business as Primo Pizza & Roast Beef, Adnan Budak, manager, for a CV at 783 Mass Ave.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Main Street.

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: 783 Main Street. The hours of operation are from 11:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. seven days a week with a seating capacity of 18.

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: Second.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: All in favor?

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: Aye.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Aye.

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: Aye.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: You're  
approved.

ADNAN BUDAK: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Good luck.

**RATIFICATION:  
MOKSA, LLC D/B/A MOKSA/NAGA**

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT:

Ratification: Moksa, LLC doing business as  
Moksa/Naga, Renato Rodriguez, Manager, holder of  
an All Alcoholic Beverages Restaurant License and  
Entertainment License at 450 Massachusetts Avenue  
has submitted the change of d/b/a to Monroe.

ACTING CHAIR ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Good  
evening.

ATTY SEAN HOPE: Good evening,  
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Commission. For  
the record, Sean Hope of Hope Legal Offices in  
Cambridge.

I'm here tonight on I'm behalf of Moksa,  
LLC. This is an application to change the  
business name.

The purpose of the change of name is part  
of a rebranding effort, primarily for the  
restaurant portion of the facility, but overall,  
as the Commission may know, there are several  
Asian-style cuisine restaurants opening up on  
Mass Ave, they have been struggling with the  
lunch and dinner business at this location. And  
so they're rebranding.

It will be all interior, more decor and  
design, but it's the idea of trying to rebrand  
the cuisine as well as some of the nightlife.

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: What is the

cuisine change going to be?

ATTY SEAN HOPE: I think it's going to be -- they're still going to have some Asian food offerings, but it's going to be more standard fare.

I think the uniqueness didn't necessarily work for the business crowd that's existing, plus the price point. So they're going to have more American local fare. I think they're going to have more of a diverse palate. It's more sushi and pan Asian cuisine, and they're hoping to drive some more traditional American cuisine to the facility.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: So we should get a copy of the new menu?

ATTY SEAN HOPE: Yeah, I believe that's still being developed. I think the first step was to get the approval.

We would be happy to submit one once a

final menu is prepared to the Commission as part of any review. I know they're getting a chef and working with the consultant to try to continue to drive more business and dinner patrons.

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: So this will be basically more domestic and name change than --

ATTY SEAN HOPE: The seating is not changing -- the numbers of seats is not changing.

I do think there's a goal of shifting the focus from the nightlife, which part of the name change, as the Commission may know, Naga is well-known in the nightlife community. So this is going to be a change for the whole facility.

They're hoping it will attract a more dinner-based crowd, less focused on the nightlife.

But to the Chief's point, there will be the interior decor only. There's no change of

seating and number of seats.

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: And Mr. Rodriguez is the present manager so there will be no change in managers?

ATTY SEAN HOPE: No change.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: No change in hours.

ATTY SEAN HOPE: No change in hours, manager or seating.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Is any member of the public here to speak on this?

JEFFREY RICHARDS: Did you handle the one at 924-928 Mass Ave already?

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: Yes.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Yes. That's the Thresher. Yes, we did.

JEFFREY RICHARDS: That's what I wanted to hear. Was there a ruling on that?

ACTING CHAIR ARTHUR GOLDBERG: That was

approved.

JEFFREY RICHARDS: There were objections to it and I don't know why people -- I was sent here in a hurry to find out what happened and people have -- there's issues, neighborhood impact questions.

We have had complaints and we would like to negotiate. I think seven days a week at 1:00 a.m. and it's a -- because there's -- I don't want to interrupt.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: We've already actually taken a vote.

JEFFREY RICHARDS: In the future, can we consult with anyone about that or is it too late?

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: You could submit written comments to the Commission, if you'd like.

JEFFREY RICHARDS: I think we'll do that. Thank you. Thank you, gentlemen and ladies.

THE REPORTER: Sir, before you go, let me have your name for the record. Spell your first name for me.

JEFFREY RICHARDS: Jeffrey,  
J-E-F-F-R-E-Y, Richards with an "s" --

THE REPORTER: That's all I need. That's fine.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: So no other members of the public to speak on this issue?

Any further questions?

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: No other questions.

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: No questions.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Anything from the Executive Director?

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: I have nothing.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Nothing. Is there a motion?

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: I make a motion to approve Moksa, LLC d/b/a Moksa/Naga, Renato Rodriguez, manager, the holder of all alcoholic beverages license and entertainment license at 450 Mass Ave has submitted a change of d/b/a to Monroe. No changes in hours of operation.

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: Second.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: All in favor?

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: Aye.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Aye.

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: Aye.

ATTY SEAN HOPE: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: You're approved.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Do you have minutes for approval?

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: I don't think. I just -- I have completed December 15, but I haven't sent them around, and

I think I was waiting for the complete  
November 24.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Nothing for  
tonight?

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ELIZABETH LINT: No.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: Would anyone  
like to move to adjourn, if we have no further  
business?

I'll move to adjourn.

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: Second.

CHAIRMAN ARTHUR GOLDBERG: All in favor?

POLICE COMMISSIONER ROBERT HAAS: Aye.

CHIEF GERALD REARDON: Aye.

(Hearing was adjourned.)

## ERRATA SHEET

INSTRUCTIONS: After reading the transcript, note any change or correction and the reason therefor on this sheet. Sign and date this errata sheet.

PAGE	LINE	
_____	_____	CHANGE: _____
		REASON: _____
_____	_____	CHANGE: _____
		REASON: _____
_____	_____	CHANGE: _____
		REASON: _____
_____	_____	CHANGE: _____
		REASON: _____
_____	_____	CHANGE: _____
		REASON: _____

I have read the foregoing transcript, and except for any corrections or changes noted above, I hereby subscribe to the transcript as an accurate record of the statement(s) made by me.

-----  
 -----  
 -----

## CERTIFICATION

Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Norfolk, ss.

I, Jill Kourafas, a Notary Public in and for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, do hereby certify:

That the hearing herein before set forth is a true and accurate record of the proceedings.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 8th day of January, 2016.

-----  
Jill Kourafas  
Certified Shorthand Reporter  
License No. 14903  
Notary Public

THE FOREGOING CERTIFICATION OF THIS TRANSCRIPT DOES NOT APPLY TO ANY REPRODUCTION OF THE SAME IN ANY RESPECT UNLESS UNDER THE DIRECT CONTROL AND/OR DIRECTION OF THE CERTIFYING REPORTER

<u>0</u>	<b><u>6:10</u></b> [2] - 1:16, 3:11
<b><u>02139</u></b> [1] - 1:14	<u>7</u>
<u>1</u>	<b><u>783</u></b> [3] - 24:12, 28:8, 28:10 <b><u>7:00</u></b> [1] - 4:12
<b><u>11</u></b> [1] - 2:5 <b><u>11:00</u></b> [4] - 24:17, 28:11, 28:12 <b><u>14903</u></b> [1] - 39:14 <b><u>15</u></b> [1] - 36:7 <b><u>18</u></b> [3] - 9:11, 24:16, 28:13 <b><u>181</u></b> [1] - 23:8 <b><u>19</u></b> [1] - 3:18 <b><u>1:00</u></b> [5] - 12:10, 14:7, 14:11, 22:4, 33:16	<u>8</u>
<u>2</u>	<b><u>831</u></b> [2] - 1:14, 3:13 <b><u>85</u></b> [3] - 12:11, 19:3, 22:3 <b><u>8:00</u></b> [1] - 23:13 <b><u>8th</u></b> [1] - 39:11
<b><u>2012</u></b> [2] - 7:6, 25:12 <b><u>2016</u></b> [4] - 1:15, 3:2, 3:10, 39:11 <b><u>21</u></b> [2] - 21:9, 21:11 <b><u>210</u></b> [1] - 23:12 <b><u>23</u></b> [1] - 2:7 <b><u>239</u></b> [1] - 27:4 <b><u>24</u></b> [2] - 2:9, 36:9	<u>9</u>
<u>3</u>	<b><u>9</u></b> [1] - 4:1 <b><u>924</u></b> [1] - 22:2 <b><u>924-928</u></b> [2] - 12:7, 33:2 <b><u>928</u></b> [2] - 13:9, 22:2 <b><u>99</u></b> [1] - 19:3
<b><u>300</u></b> [6] - 4:7, 5:10, 6:9, 6:12, 7:9, 10:16 <b><u>318</u></b> [1] - 15:10 <b><u>32</u></b> [5] - 4:11, 7:13, 10:17, 11:1 <b><u>35</u></b> [4] - 6:4, 7:13, 10:19, 11:1	<u>A</u>
<u>4</u>	<b><u>a.m</u></b> [9] - 4:12, 12:10, 14:7, 14:11, 22:4, 23:13, 24:17, 28:11, 33:16 <b><u>ability</u></b> [2] - 7:10 <b><u>able</u></b> [1] - 14:2 <b><u>abutter</u></b> [2] - 8:1, 10:1 <b><u>abutters</u></b> [1] - 13:16 <b><u>accent</u></b> [1] - 20:15 <b><u>acceptable</u></b> [1] - 14:3 <b><u>account</u></b> [1] - 9:4 <b><u>accurate</u></b> [2] - 38:12, 39:9 <b><u>ACTING</u></b> [3] - 1:8, 29:12, 33:8 <b><u>addition</u></b> [2] - 9:9, 15:12 <b><u>address</u></b> [3] - 17:15, 17:17, 22:2 <b><u>adjourn</u></b> [2] - 36:14, 36:16 <b><u>adjourned</u></b> [1] - 37:2 <b><u>Adnan</u></b> [3] - 24:10, 25:5, 28:7 <b><u>ADNAN</u></b> [14] - 25:1, 25:5, 25:8, 25:11, 25:19, 26:3, 26:6, 26:11, 26:14, 27:1, 27:4, 27:10, 29:2 <b><u>affidavit</u></b> [1] - 10:1 <b><u>AGENDA</u></b> [2] - 2:1, 2:1 <b><u>agreement</u></b> [1] - 17:18 <b><u>ahead</u></b> [2] - 13:4, 15:3 <b><u>alcohol</u></b> [3] - 16:12, 17:14 <b><u>alcoholic</u></b> [4] - 4:9, 23:10, 24:14,
<b><u>4</u></b> [1] - 2:3 <b><u>450</u></b> [2] - 29:10, 35:12 <b><u>4:30</u></b> [1] - 4:12	
<u>5</u>	
<b><u>5</u></b> [3] - 1:15, 3:2, 3:10 <b><u>5:00</u></b> [8] - 12:10, 14:11, 22:4, 22:6, 22:7, 22:10, 22:11, 23:13 <b><u>5:30</u></b> [3] - 14:6, 22:6, 22:9	
<u>6</u>	
<b><u>613</u></b> [1] - 23:9 <b><u>617.786.7783</u></b> [1] - 1:19	

35:10  
Alcoholic [2] - 12:4, 29:9  
allow [3] - 4:9, 23:10, 24:13  
Alteration [1] - 12:8  
alterations [1] - 26:4  
American [4] - 13:17, 20:15, 31:1, 31:4  
AND/OR [1] - 39:17  
anticipate [1] - 17:8  
ANY [2] - 39:17, 39:17  
appeal [1] - 14:1  
applicant [1] - 12:7  
applicants [1] - 13:10  
application [5] - 3:19, 4:4, 14:10, 23:5, 29:19  
Application [2] - 12:2, 24:9  
APPLICATION [8] - 2:2, 2:4, 2:6, 2:8, 4:2, 11:18, 23:2, 24:6  
applied [4] - 4:7, 12:4, 23:7, 24:11  
APPLY [1] - 39:17  
applying [2] - 12:8, 25:10  
appreciate [1] - 3:7  
approval [2] - 31:10, 36:4  
approve [4] - 10:15, 21:19, 28:6, 35:9  
approved [4] - 11:14, 29:1, 33:9, 36:2  
Aramark [6] - 4:5, 8:17, 9:2, 9:11, 10:15  
ARAMARK [4] - 2:3, 2:3, 4:2, 4:3  
area [1] - 5:14  
ARTHUR [75] - 1:8, 3:4, 4:14, 4:16, 5:4, 5:12, 6:12, 6:17, 7:3, 7:12, 7:16, 8:11, 9:17, 10:8, 10:19, 11:4, 11:6, 11:8, 11:13, 11:17, 12:12, 13:3, 14:8, 14:18, 15:3, 16:11, 17:13, 19:4, 20:18, 21:7, 21:11, 21:16, 22:12, 22:15, 22:17, 23:15, 24:2, 24:19, 25:2, 25:7, 25:9, 25:15, 26:1, 26:4, 26:8, 26:12, 26:18, 27:2, 27:6, 27:11, 27:18, 28:3, 28:9, 28:15, 28:17, 28:19, 29:3, 29:12, 31:6, 32:14, 32:18, 33:4, 33:8, 33:18, 34:3, 34:15, 35:2, 35:6, 35:15, 35:17, 36:1, 36:3, 36:10, 36:13, 36:18

Arthur [1] - 3:15  
Asian [3] - 30:5, 30:15, 31:3  
aspect [1] - 15:16  
Associates [3] - 23:5, 23:16, 24:3  
ASSOCIATES [2] - 2:6, 23:2  
assume [1] - 24:2  
AT [1] - 1:13  
atmosphere [1] - 14:4  
attract [1] - 32:6  
ATTY [17] - 12:19, 13:5, 14:13, 15:1, 15:4, 17:2, 17:6, 17:16, 18:19, 22:10, 29:14, 30:14, 31:8, 31:18, 32:13, 32:16, 35:19  
audio [1] - 3:5  
Ave [11] - 3:13, 5:10, 6:9, 6:13, 10:16, 22:2, 27:5, 28:8, 30:6, 33:2, 35:12  
Avenue [6] - 1:14, 4:8, 12:7, 13:9, 23:8, 29:10  
aye [14] - 11:7, 11:8, 11:9, 22:16, 22:17, 22:18, 28:16, 28:17, 28:18, 35:16, 35:17, 35:18, 36:19, 37:1

B

B&B [4] - 2:8, 24:6, 24:9, 28:6  
B-U-D-A-K [1] - 25:6  
backgrounds [1] - 21:5  
Badwal [1] - 12:6  
bar [3] - 5:8, 5:17, 18:6  
Bar [2] - 3:17, 24:4  
barring [1] - 20:9  
based [1] - 32:6  
Basement [2] - 1:13, 3:13  
bay [1] - 6:16  
beef [1] - 26:17  
BEEF [2] - 2:9, 24:7  
Beef [2] - 24:10, 28:7  
beer [2] - 16:14, 16:19  
beginning [1] - 14:6  
behalf [1] - 29:18  
beverage [1] - 6:10  
Beverages [2] - 12:4, 29:9  
beverages [5] - 4:9, 5:19, 23:10, 24:14, 35:11  
big [1] - 19:15

**Biogen** [1] - 9:14  
**bit** [1] - 5:13  
**BOARD** [1] - 1:7  
**Board** [3] - 7:6, 8:12, 14:16  
**BonChon** [1] - 3:19  
**bottled** [1] - 6:1  
**bought** [1] - 25:13  
**brew** [1] - 5:17  
**briefly** [1] - 25:10  
**bring** [1] - 6:9  
**brunch** [1] - 14:16  
**Budak** [3] - 24:11, 25:6, 28:7  
**BUDAK** [13] - 25:1, 25:5, 25:8, 25:11, 25:19, 26:3, 26:6, 26:11, 26:14, 27:1, 27:4, 27:10, 29:2  
**building** [3] - 5:10, 5:11, 8:8  
**Building** [3] - 1:13, 3:12, 23:9  
**business** [18] - 4:5, 15:13, 15:14, 21:2, 21:19, 23:6, 23:16, 24:4, 24:10, 26:7, 26:17, 28:6, 29:7, 30:1, 30:7, 30:18, 31:14, 36:15  
**businesses** [1] - 9:13  
**buy** [1] - 25:13

C

**C-O-N-N-E-L-L-Y** [1] - 5:3  
**CAMBRIDGE** [2] - 1:2, 1:3  
**Cambridge** [7] - 1:14, 6:7, 9:13, 15:8, 16:7, 27:5, 29:17  
**capacities** [2] - 16:2, 16:15  
**capacity** [16] - 4:11, 7:13, 9:6, 10:17, 12:11, 16:4, 17:4, 19:1, 19:2, 19:3, 22:3, 23:12, 24:16, 27:7, 28:13  
**CAPTURING** [1] - 1:18  
**care** [2] - 10:5, 24:1  
**Castle** [2] - 12:6, 21:3  
**cell** [1] - 3:7  
**center** [1] - 18:18  
**certificate** [2] - 21:2, 21:4  
**CERTIFICATION** [2] - 39:1, 39:16  
**Certified** [1] - 39:14  
**certify** [1] - 39:7  
**CERTIFYING** [1] - 39:18  
**CHAIR** [3] - 1:8, 29:12, 33:8

**Chair** [1] - 3:14  
**Chairman** [1] - 29:15  
**chairman** [1] - 13:5  
**CHAIRMAN** [72] - 3:4, 4:14, 4:16, 5:4, 5:12, 6:12, 6:17, 7:3, 7:12, 7:16, 8:11, 9:17, 10:8, 10:19, 11:4, 11:6, 11:8, 11:13, 11:17, 12:12, 13:3, 14:8, 14:18, 15:3, 16:11, 17:13, 19:4, 20:18, 21:7, 21:11, 21:16, 22:12, 22:15, 22:17, 23:15, 24:2, 24:19, 25:2, 25:7, 25:9, 25:15, 26:1, 26:4, 26:8, 26:12, 26:18, 27:2, 27:6, 27:11, 27:18, 28:3, 28:9, 28:15, 28:17, 28:19, 29:3, 31:6, 32:14, 32:18, 33:4, 33:18, 34:3, 34:15, 35:2, 35:6, 35:15, 35:17, 36:1, 36:3, 36:10, 36:13, 36:18  
**CHANGE** [6] - 38:4, 38:5, 38:6, 38:7, 38:8, 38:9  
**change** [14] - 29:11, 29:19, 30:1, 30:13, 31:17, 32:2, 32:5, 32:9, 32:11, 32:13, 32:14, 32:16, 35:12, 38:2  
**changes** [3] - 18:8, 35:13, 38:11  
**changing** [3] - 18:16, 31:19  
**checked** [1] - 14:10  
**chef** [1] - 31:13  
**Chicago** [2] - 26:15, 27:4  
**Chief** [1] - 3:15  
**CHIEF** [27] - 1:9, 6:18, 8:3, 10:10, 10:14, 11:1, 11:9, 19:8, 19:16, 20:5, 20:10, 20:16, 21:18, 22:7, 22:18, 27:17, 28:5, 28:10, 28:18, 30:12, 31:16, 32:10, 35:1, 35:8, 35:16, 36:17, 37:1  
**chief's** [1] - 32:7  
**chose** [1] - 15:9  
**Chris** [3] - 11:11, 15:6, 22:10  
**Chris'** [1] - 15:17  
**CHRISTOPHER** [12] - 12:15, 12:16, 16:13, 18:3, 18:7, 18:11, 18:14, 19:13, 20:1, 20:7, 20:12, 22:11  
**Christopher** [5] - 12:3, 12:15, 13:12, 13:13, 22:1  
**City** [1] - 16:7

CITY [1] - 1:3  
Cleo [1] - 16:2  
closing [1] - 14:7  
coffee [2] - 5:8, 5:17  
Coffee [1] - 24:4  
cold [2] - 7:11  
comments [1] - 34:4  
COMMISSION [3] - 1:2, 1:5, 1:7  
Commission [8] - 3:9, 13:6, 17:7, 29:15, 30:4, 31:12, 32:3, 34:4  
COMMISSIONER [24] - 1:10, 8:13, 8:19, 9:5, 10:12, 11:5, 11:7, 16:18, 17:5, 18:1, 18:9, 18:12, 21:14, 22:5, 22:8, 22:14, 22:16, 27:15, 28:14, 28:16, 34:18, 35:14, 35:18, 36:19  
Commissioner [1] - 3:16  
Commissioners [2] - 3:14, 27:14  
common [3] - 5:8, 10:16, 24:11  
Common [2] - 4:7, 23:7  
Commonwealth [3] - 16:6, 39:3, 39:6  
community [4] - 15:15, 15:16, 17:12, 32:4  
complaints [1] - 33:14  
complete [1] - 36:8  
completed [1] - 36:6  
conditions [1] - 20:9  
Conference [2] - 1:13, 3:13  
congratulations [1] - 23:1  
CONNELLY [7] - 5:2, 6:2, 7:1, 7:5, 8:6, 9:10, 11:15  
Connelly [1] - 5:2  
conscious [1] - 19:16  
considered [1] - 14:12  
construction [2] - 5:10, 20:6  
consult [1] - 34:2  
consultant [1] - 31:13  
consumed [3] - 4:10, 23:11, 24:15  
continue [2] - 13:8, 31:14  
continued [2] - 3:17, 4:1  
continuing [1] - 25:16  
CONTROL [1] - 39:17  
cooking [1] - 20:13  
copy [1] - 31:7  
Corporation [1] - 4:5

CORPORATION [2] - 2:3, 4:2  
correct [3] - 7:14, 25:18, 27:9  
correction [1] - 38:2  
corrections [1] - 38:11  
course [1] - 15:4  
crowd [2] - 30:18, 32:6  
cuisine [7] - 13:19, 20:11, 30:5, 30:10, 30:13, 31:3, 31:4  
cups [1] - 5:19  
current [3] - 6:3, 6:8, 19:3  
CV [1] - 28:8

## D

D/B/A [9] - 2:3, 2:5, 2:7, 2:9, 4:3, 11:18, 23:3, 24:7, 29:4  
d/b/a [5] - 12:2, 12:6, 29:11, 35:9, 35:12  
DATE [1] - 1:15  
date [1] - 38:3  
days [6] - 12:10, 14:5, 22:4, 24:17, 28:12, 33:15  
December [1] - 36:7  
decided [1] - 25:12  
decor [2] - 30:9, 32:8  
decorative [1] - 18:7  
describe [2] - 5:13, 25:10  
Description [1] - 12:9  
design [2] - 18:4, 30:9  
developed [1] - 31:9  
dining [3] - 14:2, 14:3, 16:1  
dinner [4] - 14:6, 30:7, 31:14, 32:6  
dinner-based [1] - 32:6  
DIRECT [1] - 39:17  
DIRECTION [1] - 39:18  
director [1] - 9:18  
Director [3] - 20:19, 27:19, 35:3  
DIRECTOR [19] - 1:11, 3:6, 7:19, 8:9, 9:19, 10:4, 11:10, 12:1, 21:1, 21:9, 23:4, 23:19, 24:8, 28:1, 29:6, 33:3, 35:4, 36:5, 36:12  
dishwasher [1] - 6:16  
district [1] - 9:12  
diverse [1] - 31:2  
Division [1] - 7:7  
document [1] - 11:14

<p><b>DOES</b> [1] - 39:17  <b>domestic</b> [1] - 31:17  <b>done</b> [2] - 6:19, 11:16  <b>down</b> [2] - 7:2, 15:11  <b>drive</b> [2] - 31:4, 31:14</p>	
<b>E</b>	<b>F</b>
<p><b>effort</b> [1] - 30:2  <b>ELIZABETH</b> [19] - 1:11, 3:6, 7:19, 8:9, 9:19, 10:4, 11:10, 12:1, 21:1, 21:9, 23:4, 23:19, 24:8, 28:1, 29:6, 33:3, 35:4, 36:5, 36:12  <b>emphasis</b> [1] - 13:18  <b>England</b> [1] - 9:12  <b>entered</b> [1] - 17:18  <b>Entertainment</b> [1] - 29:10  <b>entertainment</b> [1] - 35:11  <b>entire</b> [1] - 9:3  <b>entity</b> [1] - 13:12  <b>equipment</b> [1] - 18:16  <b>ERRATA</b> [1] - 38:1  <b>errata</b> [1] - 38:3  <b>essentially</b> [1] - 20:14  <b>establishment</b> [1] - 17:10  <b>evening</b> [6] - 12:12, 24:19, 25:7, 25:8, 29:13, 29:14  <b>exactly</b> [1] - 25:19  <b>except</b> [1] - 38:11  <b>excited</b> [1] - 17:11  <b>Executive</b> [3] - 20:19, 27:18, 35:3  <b>executive</b> [1] - 9:18  <b>EXECUTIVE</b> [19] - 1:11, 3:6, 7:19, 8:9, 9:19, 10:4, 11:10, 12:1, 21:1, 21:9, 23:4, 23:19, 24:8, 28:1, 29:6, 33:3, 35:4, 36:5, 36:12  <b>exercised</b> [1] - 24:12  <b>existing</b> [7] - 6:3, 17:14, 17:19, 18:16, 25:17, 27:7, 30:18  <b>expect</b> [1] - 14:14  <b>expected</b> [1] - 20:6  <b>experience</b> [13] - 8:14, 8:15, 13:14, 14:3, 15:17, 15:18, 16:3, 16:9, 20:11, 25:14, 26:13, 26:16, 26:19  <b>extended</b> [1] - 6:7  <b>extent</b> [1] - 18:15</p>	<p><b>facilities</b> [1] - 6:13  <b>facility</b> [3] - 30:3, 31:5, 32:5  <b>familiar</b> [1] - 16:5  <b>far</b> [2] - 15:17, 18:19  <b>fare</b> [2] - 30:17, 31:1  <b>favor</b> [5] - 11:6, 22:15, 28:15, 35:15, 36:18  <b>February</b> [1] - 4:1  <b>feet</b> [1] - 18:17  <b>few</b> [1] - 18:17  <b>filed</b> [1] - 11:14  <b>final</b> [1] - 31:11  <b>finally</b> [1] - 25:13  <b>fine</b> [5] - 14:2, 14:3, 16:1, 21:6, 34:14  <b>first</b> [5] - 4:4, 9:6, 11:16, 31:9, 34:9  <b>five</b> [1] - 19:18  <b>floor</b> [3] - 5:9, 8:6, 8:7  <b>focus</b> [1] - 32:1  <b>focused</b> [1] - 32:7  <b>folks</b> [1] - 6:10  <b>followed</b> [1] - 11:3  <b>food</b> [12] - 4:9, 5:14, 6:2, 6:9, 6:18, 7:9, 7:11, 20:13, 23:10, 24:14, 30:15  <b>Foods</b> [3] - 12:2, 20:1, 21:19  <b>FOODS</b> [2] - 2:5, 11:18  <b>footprint</b> [1] - 6:7  <b>foregoing</b> [1] - 38:11  <b>FOREGOING</b> [1] - 39:16  <b>forth</b> [2] - 5:15, 39:8  <b>four</b> [3] - 8:17, 18:4, 20:9  <b>Friday</b> [2] - 4:13, 23:14  <b>fryolator</b> [2] - 19:12, 19:14  <b>full</b> [3] - 6:5, 16:15, 16:17  <b>future</b> [1] - 34:1</p>
	<b>G</b>
	<p><b>General</b> [1] - 3:10  <b>gentlemen</b> [1] - 34:7  <b>GERALD</b> [27] - 1:9, 6:18, 8:3, 10:10, 10:14, 11:1, 11:9, 19:8, 19:16, 20:5, 20:10, 20:16, 21:18, 22:7,</p>

22:18, 27:17, 28:5, 28:10, 28:18,  
30:12, 31:16, 32:10, 35:1, 35:8,  
35:16, 36:17, 37:1

**Gerald** [1] - 3:15

**GERMAIN** [10] - 12:19, 13:5, 14:13,  
15:1, 15:4, 17:2, 17:6, 17:16,  
18:19, 22:10

**Germain** [2] - 13:1, 13:6

**goal** [1] - 32:1

**GOLDBERG** [75] - 1:8, 3:4, 4:14,  
4:16, 5:4, 5:12, 6:12, 6:17, 7:3,  
7:12, 7:16, 8:11, 9:17, 10:8,  
10:19, 11:4, 11:6, 11:8, 11:13,  
11:17, 12:12, 13:3, 14:8, 14:18,  
15:3, 16:11, 17:13, 19:4, 20:18,  
21:7, 21:11, 21:16, 22:12, 22:15,  
22:17, 23:15, 24:2, 24:19, 25:2,  
25:7, 25:9, 25:15, 26:1, 26:4,  
26:8, 26:12, 26:18, 27:2, 27:6,  
27:11, 27:18, 28:3, 28:9, 28:15,  
28:17, 28:19, 29:3, 29:12, 31:6,  
32:14, 32:18, 33:4, 33:8, 33:18,  
34:3, 34:15, 35:2, 35:6, 35:15,  
35:17, 36:1, 36:3, 36:10, 36:13,  
36:18

**Goldberg** [1] - 3:15

**grab** [1] - 5:18

**grab-and-go** [1] - 5:18

**granted** [3] - 4:8, 23:9, 24:13

**great** [1] - 11:17

**Group** [2] - 24:9, 28:6

**GROUP** [2] - 2:8, 24:6

## H

**HAAS** [24] - 1:10, 8:13, 8:19, 9:5,  
10:12, 11:5, 11:7, 16:18, 17:5,  
18:1, 18:9, 18:12, 21:14, 22:5,  
22:8, 22:14, 22:16, 27:15, 28:14,  
28:16, 34:18, 35:14, 35:18, 36:19

**Haas** [1] - 3:16

**half** [1] - 13:11

**hand** [1] - 39:11

**handle** [1] - 33:1

**happy** [1] - 31:10

**Harbor** [1] - 20:1

**Harvard** [1] - 15:10

**heading** [1] - 20:2

**Health** [1] - 7:7

**hear** [1] - 33:7

**HEARING** [2] - 1:2, 1:5

**Hearing** [2] - 3:10, 37:2

**hearing** [1] - 39:8

**held** [1] - 12:5

**hereby** [2] - 38:12, 39:6

**herein** [1] - 39:8

**hereunto** [1] - 39:10

**hi** [4] - 4:14, 4:15, 5:4, 25:1

**holder** [2] - 29:8, 35:10

**holding** [2] - 6:14, 9:7

**hood** [2] - 19:10, 19:11

**HOPE** [7] - 29:14, 30:14, 31:8,  
31:18, 32:13, 32:16, 35:19

**Hope** [2] - 29:16

**hopeful** [1] - 17:11

**hoping** [3] - 20:8, 31:3, 32:5

**hot** [3] - 7:11, 19:17

**hour** [1] - 14:7

**hours** [12] - 4:12, 10:18, 12:9,  
14:10, 22:3, 23:12, 24:16, 27:8,  
28:11, 32:15, 32:16, 35:13

**house** [1] - 15:10

**hurry** [1] - 33:12

## I

**idea** [1] - 30:9

**impact** [1] - 33:14

**IN** [3] - 1:5, 39:10, 39:17

**Inc** [3] - 12:5, 23:5, 24:9

**INC** [3] - 1:18, 2:6, 23:2

**INDEX** [1] - 2:1

**India** [1] - 12:6

**Indian** [1] - 21:3

**industry** [2] - 15:19, 16:9

**inside** [1] - 7:13

**Inspectional** [1] - 7:7

**INSTRUCTIONS** [1] - 38:2

**interior** [2] - 30:8, 32:8

**interrupt** [2] - 14:9, 33:17

**invest** [1] - 15:15

**issue** [2] - 27:12, 34:16

**issues** [1] - 33:13

<b><u>Italian</u></b> [3] - 13:18, 20:11, 20:13	<b><u>Limited</u></b> [2] - 12:2, 21:19
<b><u>J</u></b>	<b><u>LINE</u></b> [1] - 38:4
<b><u>January</u></b> [5] - 1:15, 3:10, 3:18, 7:6, 39:11	<b><u>LINT</u></b> [19] - 1:11, 3:6, 7:19, 8:9, 9:19, 10:4, 11:10, 12:1, 21:1, 21:9, 23:4, 23:19, 24:8, 28:1, 29:6, 33:3, 35:4, 36:5, 36:12
<b><u>january</u></b> [1] - 3:2	<b><u>Lint</u></b> [1] - 11:3
<b><u>JEFFREY</u></b> [7] - 33:1, 33:6, 33:10, 34:1, 34:6, 34:11, 34:12	<b><u>liquor</u></b> [2] - 16:16, 16:17
<b><u>Jeffrey</u></b> [1] - 34:11	<b><u>lived</u></b> [1] - 15:7
<b><u>Jill</u></b> [2] - 39:5, 39:13	<b><u>LLC</u></b> [4] - 29:4, 29:7, 29:19, 35:9
<b><u>join</u></b> [1] - 17:12	<b><u>local</u></b> [1] - 31:1
<b><u>K</u></b>	<b><u>location</u></b> [4] - 6:3, 6:10, 15:9, 30:7
<b><u>keep</u></b> [2] - 7:11, 26:7	<b><u>Lombardi</u></b> [2] - 1:13, 3:12
<b><u>Kendall</u></b> [1] - 9:15	<b><u>looking</u></b> [3] - 5:5, 5:7, 17:13
<b><u>kind</u></b> [2] - 14:1, 14:3	<b><u>LTD</u></b> [2] - 2:5, 11:18
<b><u>kitchen</u></b> [7] - 6:5, 18:10, 18:11, 18:13, 18:15, 19:8, 20:3	<b><u>luck</u></b> [1] - 29:3
<b><u>known</u></b> [1] - 32:3	<b><u>lunch</u></b> [6] - 14:10, 14:11, 14:14, 14:19, 15:2, 30:7
<b><u>Kourafas</u></b> [2] - 39:5, 39:13	<b><u>M</u></b>
<b><u>L</u></b>	<b><u>Main</u></b> [3] - 24:12, 28:9, 28:10
<b><u>ladies</u></b> [1] - 34:7	<b><u>managed</u></b> [1] - 16:16
<b><u>Lansdowne</u></b> [2] - 6:4, 6:19	<b><u>manager</u></b> [15] - 8:14, 9:12, 13:13, 15:17, 16:14, 16:19, 17:3, 20:12, 21:7, 22:1, 26:19, 28:7, 32:11, 32:17, 35:10
<b><u>last</u></b> [2] - 12:18, 25:5	<b><u>Manager</u></b> [6] - 4:6, 12:3, 12:6, 23:7, 24:11, 29:8
<b><u>late</u></b> [1] - 34:2	<b><u>managerial</u></b> [4] - 9:6, 9:7, 16:4, 17:4
<b><u>leased</u></b> [1] - 26:15	<b><u>managers</u></b> [1] - 32:12
<b><u>Legal</u></b> [1] - 29:16	<b><u>managing</u></b> [1] - 16:3
<b><u>LESLEY</u></b> [11] - 12:19, 13:1, 13:5, 14:13, 15:1, 15:4, 17:2, 17:6, 17:16, 18:19, 22:10	<b><u>Mass</u></b> [11] - 3:13, 5:10, 6:9, 6:12, 10:16, 22:2, 27:4, 28:8, 30:6, 33:2, 35:12
<b><u>lesley</u></b> [1] - 12:19	<b><u>Massachusetts</u></b> [9] - 1:14, 1:14, 4:8, 12:7, 13:9, 23:8, 29:10, 39:3, 39:6
<b><u>Lesley</u></b> [1] - 13:6	<b><u>matter</u></b> [2] - 4:4, 24:1
<b><u>less</u></b> [2] - 14:4, 32:6	<b><u>MATTERS</u></b> [1] - 2:1
<b><u>level</u></b> [1] - 8:4	<b><u>McDermott</u></b> [1] - 13:7
<b><u>LICENSE</u></b> [3] - 1:2, 1:5, 1:7	<b><u>means</u></b> [1] - 3:5
<b><u>License</u></b> [5] - 3:9, 12:5, 29:9, 29:10, 39:14	<b><u>meeting</u></b> [1] - 3:4
<b><u>license</u></b> [14] - 4:7, 4:8, 5:8, 10:16, 13:8, 17:1, 17:14, 17:17, 23:8, 23:9, 24:12, 24:13, 35:11	<b><u>member</u></b> [2] - 19:4, 32:18
<b><u>Licensed</u></b> [1] - 12:8	<b><u>Members</u></b> [2] - 13:6, 29:15
<b><u>licensed</u></b> [1] - 7:4	<b><u>members</u></b> [2] - 7:17, 34:16
<b><u>licensee</u></b> [3] - 13:11, 19:3	
<b><u>licenses</u></b> [1] - 16:12	

<p><b><u>MEMBERS</u></b> [1] - 1:7  <b><u>menu</u></b> [3] - 26:1, 31:7, 31:11  <b><u>Michael</u></b> [2] - 1:13, 3:12  <b><u>might</u></b> [1] - 24:1  <b><u>Miller</u></b> [1] - 13:7  <b><u>minute</u></b> [1] - 14:9  <b><u>minutes</u></b> [1] - 36:4  <b><u>missing</u></b> [1] - 10:1  <b><u>Mohinder</u></b> [1] - 12:6  <b><u>MOKSA</u></b> [1] - 29:4  <b><u>Moksa</u></b> [3] - 29:7, 29:18, 35:9  <b><u>MOKSA/NAGA</u></b> [1] - 29:4  <b><u>Moksa/Naga</u></b> [2] - 29:8, 35:9  <b><u>moment</u></b> [1] - 13:15  <b><u>Monday</u></b> [2] - 4:13, 23:13  <b><u>Monroe</u></b> [2] - 29:11, 35:13  <b><u>months</u></b> [3] - 14:15, 18:4, 20:9  <b><u>mostly</u></b> [2] - 18:4, 18:7  <b><u>motion</u></b> [8] - 10:9, 10:14, 21:17, 21:18, 28:4, 28:5, 35:7, 35:8  <b><u>move</u></b> [2] - 36:14, 36:16  <b><u>moved</u></b> [1] - 6:8  <b><u>moving</u></b> [2] - 15:7, 18:6  <b><u>multiple</u></b> [1] - 9:15</p>	<p>24:14  <b><u>none</u></b> [4] - 7:18, 19:6, 23:18, 27:13  <b><u>Norfolk</u></b> [1] - 39:4  <b><u>NOT</u></b> [1] - 39:17  <b><u>Notary</u></b> [2] - 39:5, 39:15  <b><u>note</u></b> [1] - 38:2  <b><u>noted</u></b> [2] - 15:5, 38:11  <b><u>nothing</u></b> [7] - 18:5, 21:14, 22:19, 28:2, 35:5, 35:6, 36:10  <b><u>notification</u></b> [1] - 13:16  <b><u>notifications</u></b> [1] - 8:1  <b><u>Novartis</u></b> [1] - 23:6  <b><u>NOVARTIS</u></b> [2] - 2:7, 23:3  <b><u>November</u></b> [1] - 36:9  <b><u>number</u></b> [2] - 16:1, 32:9  <b><u>numbers</u></b> [1] - 31:19</p>
<b><u>N</u></b>	<b><u>o</u></b>
<p><b><u>Naga</u></b> [1] - 32:3  <b><u>name</u></b> [11] - 12:13, 12:18, 16:13, 25:3, 25:5, 30:1, 31:17, 32:2, 34:9, 34:10  <b><u>names</u></b> [3] - 4:17, 4:18, 12:14  <b><u>Nantucket</u></b> [1] - 16:5  <b><u>necessary</u></b> [1] - 30:17  <b><u>need</u></b> [2] - 17:10, 34:13  <b><u>negotiate</u></b> [1] - 33:15  <b><u>neighborhood</u></b> [5] - 14:1, 15:5, 15:7, 17:11, 33:13  <b><u>New</u></b> [1] - 9:12  <b><u>new</u></b> [5] - 5:10, 9:8, 13:17, 19:11, 31:7  <b><u>next</u></b> [1] - 24:1  <b><u>nightlife</u></b> [4] - 30:11, 32:2, 32:4, 32:7  <b><u>non</u></b> [3] - 4:9, 23:10, 24:14  <b><u>non-alcoholic</u></b> [3] - 4:9, 23:10,</p>	<p><b><u>objections</u></b> [1] - 33:10  <b><u>obviously</u></b> [1] - 17:9  <b><u>OF</u></b> [5] - 1:3, 2:1, 39:16, 39:17, 39:18  <b><u>offerings</u></b> [1] - 30:16  <b><u>office</u></b> [2] - 10:6, 11:11  <b><u>Offices</u></b> [1] - 29:16  <b><u>OFFICIAL</u></b> [1] - 1:18  <b><u>once</u></b> [1] - 31:11  <b><u>one</u></b> [6] - 15:8, 19:14, 24:3, 26:15, 31:11, 33:1  <b><u>open</u></b> [4] - 13:19, 14:14, 14:16, 15:5  <b><u>opened</u></b> [1] - 9:4  <b><u>opening</u></b> [1] - 30:5  <b><u>operate</u></b> [4] - 6:5, 13:17, 14:5, 15:12  <b><u>operated</u></b> [1] - 13:8  <b><u>operating</u></b> [7] - 4:12, 7:5, 8:14, 9:13, 17:3, 22:3, 23:12  <b><u>operation</u></b> [7] - 12:9, 17:9, 24:16, 25:16, 27:8, 28:11, 35:13  <b><u>operations</u></b> [1] - 9:15  <b><u>opportunity</u></b> [1] - 14:16  <b><u>optimistically</u></b> [1] - 20:8  <b><u>ordinance</u></b> [1] - 19:11  <b><u>outdated</u></b> [1] - 21:5  <b><u>outdoor</u></b> [1] - 8:3</p>

<p><u>outgrown</u> [1] - 6:8</p> <p><u>outside</u> [3] - 7:13, 10:17, 10:19</p> <p><u>overall</u> [1] - 30:3</p> <p><u>own</u> [1] - 16:10</p> <p><u>owner</u> [1] - 17:19</p> <p><u>owning</u> [1] - 13:10</p>	<p><u>portion</u> [1] - 30:3</p> <p><u>position</u> [2] - 9:7, 18:17</p> <p><u>positive</u> [1] - 15:15</p> <p><u>potentially</u> [1] - 14:15</p> <p><u>Premise</u> [1] - 12:8</p> <p><u>premises</u> [4] - 4:10, 23:11, 24:15, 26:5</p> <p><u>prep</u> [1] - 6:18</p> <p><u>preparation</u> [3] - 5:14, 6:2, 7:9</p> <p><u>prepared</u> [1] - 31:11</p> <p><u>present</u> [1] - 32:11</p> <p><u>pretty</u> [2] - 11:15, 20:4</p> <p><u>previous</u> [1] - 20:11</p> <p><u>previously</u> [1] - 15:8</p> <p><u>price</u> [1] - 30:19</p> <p><u>primarily</u> [1] - 30:2</p> <p><u>PRIMO</u> [2] - 2:9, 24:7</p> <p><u>Primo</u> [3] - 24:10, 25:12, 28:7</p> <p><u>proceedings</u> [1] - 39:9</p> <p><u>Proof</u> [2] - 21:10, 21:11</p> <p><u>proposed</u> [4] - 4:11, 12:9, 13:11, 13:13</p> <p><u>proudly</u> [1] - 5:17</p> <p><u>provide</u> [1] - 14:2</p> <p><u>provision</u> [1] - 11:2</p> <p><u>public</u> [5] - 7:17, 19:5, 27:12, 32:19, 34:16</p> <p><u>Public</u> [2] - 39:5, 39:15</p> <p><u>purchase</u> [2] - 17:14, 17:18</p> <p><u>purpose</u> [1] - 30:1</p> <p><u>put</u> [1] - 16:13</p>
<u>P</u>	
<p><u>p.m</u> [12] - 1:16, 3:11, 4:12, 12:10, 14:6, 14:11, 22:4, 22:6, 22:7, 23:13, 24:17, 28:12</p> <p><u>packet</u> [2] - 10:5, 21:3</p> <p><u>PAGE</u> [2] - 2:1, 38:4</p> <p><u>palate</u> [1] - 31:2</p> <p><u>Pam</u> [2] - 15:6, 16:8</p> <p><u>PAMELA</u> [3] - 12:17, 18:6</p> <p><u>Pamela</u> [2] - 12:17, 13:12</p> <p><u>pan</u> [1] - 31:3</p> <p><u>paperwork</u> [1] - 11:2</p> <p><u>part</u> [3] - 30:2, 31:12, 32:2</p> <p><u>past</u> [2] - 19:18, 26:9</p> <p><u>patrons</u> [1] - 31:15</p> <p><u>people</u> [2] - 33:11, 33:13</p> <p><u>per</u> [2] - 12:10, 24:17</p> <p><u>period</u> [1] - 13:2</p> <p><u>permitted</u> [1] - 7:4</p> <p><u>personally</u> [1] - 15:14</p> <p><u>Pharmaceuticals</u> [5] - 4:6, 5:9, 6:6, 9:3, 10:15</p> <p><u>phone</u> [1] - 3:7</p> <p><u>pizza</u> [2] - 25:13, 26:17</p> <p><u>Pizza</u> [5] - 24:10, 25:12, 26:15, 27:4, 28:7</p> <p><u>PIZZA</u> [2] - 2:9, 24:7</p> <p><u>place</u> [3] - 25:13, 27:3, 27:8</p> <p><u>places</u> [1] - 16:2</p> <p><u>plan</u> [1] - 14:14</p> <p><u>plans</u> [1] - 7:8</p> <p><u>plus</u> [1] - 30:18</p> <p><u>point</u> [2] - 30:19, 32:8</p> <p><u>POLICE</u> [24] - 1:10, 8:13, 8:19, 9:5, 10:12, 11:5, 11:7, 16:18, 17:5, 18:1, 18:9, 18:12, 21:14, 22:5, 22:8, 22:14, 22:16, 27:15, 28:14, 28:16, 34:18, 35:14, 35:18, 36:19</p>	<p style="text-align: center;"><u>Q</u></p> <p><u>questions</u> [14] - 8:12, 10:9, 10:11, 10:13, 17:7, 19:7, 20:17, 27:14, 27:16, 27:17, 33:14, 34:17, 34:19, 35:1</p> <p><u>Quilty</u> [1] - 13:7</p>
<u>R</u>	
	<p><u>RATIFICATION</u> [1] - 29:4</p> <p><u>Ratification</u> [1] - 29:7</p> <p><u>RE</u> [1] - 1:5</p> <p><u>read</u> [1] - 38:11</p> <p><u>reading</u> [1] - 38:2</p>

**really** [2] - 15:13, 15:15  
**Realto** [1] - 16:2  
**Reardon** [1] - 3:15  
**REARDON** [27] - 1:9, 6:18, 8:3, 10:10, 10:14, 11:1, 11:9, 19:8, 19:16, 20:5, 20:10, 20:16, 21:18, 22:7, 22:18, 27:17, 28:5, 28:10, 28:18, 30:12, 31:16, 32:10, 35:1, 35:8, 35:16, 36:17, 37:1  
**reason** [1] - 38:2  
**REASON** [6] - 38:5, 38:6, 38:7, 38:8, 38:9, 38:10  
**reasons** [1] - 15:8  
**rebrand** [1] - 30:10  
**rebranding** [2] - 30:2, 30:8  
**record** [8] - 13:14, 15:18, 16:19, 17:3, 29:16, 34:9, 38:12, 39:9  
**RECORD** [1] - 1:18  
**recorded** [1] - 3:5  
**redoing** [2] - 18:13, 18:14  
**reducing** [1] - 19:1  
**refrigeration** [2] - 6:13, 6:15  
**regulation** [1] - 19:17  
**regulations** [1] - 16:6  
**relationship** [1] - 19:12  
**relatively** [1] - 19:14  
**remaining** [1] - 17:17  
**Renato** [2] - 29:8, 35:9  
**renovating** [1] - 15:10  
**renovation** [1] - 20:3  
**renovations** [1] - 18:2  
**replacement** [1] - 19:9  
**REPORTER** [3] - 34:8, 34:13, 39:18  
**Reporter** [1] - 39:14  
**REPORTERS** [1] - 1:18  
**reports** [1] - 9:10  
**REPRODUCTION** [1] - 39:17  
**requested** [1] - 14:11  
**RESPECT** [1] - 39:17  
**respect** [1] - 15:14  
**Restaurant** [7] - 12:5, 23:5, 23:16, 24:3, 24:9, 28:6, 29:9  
**RESTAURANT** [4] - 2:6, 2:8, 23:2, 24:6  
**restaurant** [12] - 13:18, 13:19,

15:6, 15:19, 16:4, 16:9, 16:17, 25:17, 26:13, 26:16, 26:19, 30:3  
**restaurants** [3] - 16:12, 16:15, 30:5  
**review** [1] - 31:12  
**Richards** [1] - 34:12  
**RICHARDS** [6] - 33:1, 33:6, 33:10, 34:1, 34:6, 34:11  
**Roast** [2] - 24:10, 28:7  
**ROAST** [2] - 2:9, 24:7  
**roast** [1] - 26:17  
**ROBERT** [24] - 1:10, 8:13, 8:19, 9:5, 10:12, 11:5, 11:7, 16:18, 17:5, 18:1, 18:9, 18:12, 21:14, 22:5, 22:8, 22:14, 22:16, 27:15, 28:14, 28:16, 34:18, 35:14, 35:18, 36:19  
**Robert** [1] - 3:16  
**Rodriguez** [3] - 29:8, 32:10, 35:10  
**roof** [1] - 8:4  
**Room** [2] - 1:13, 3:13  
**room** [3] - 6:15, 11:2, 18:18  
**ROXTAR** [2] - 2:5, 11:18  
**Roxtar** [2] - 12:2, 21:19  
**ruling** [1] - 33:7  
**rustic** [2] - 14:2, 20:13

**s**

**S-M-I-L-E-Y** [1] - 5:1  
**S-T-period-G-E-R-M-A-I-N** [1] - 13:2  
**salads** [1] - 5:18  
**sale** [1] - 17:18  
**SAMANATHA** [1] - 5:1  
**Samantha** [2] - 4:6, 4:19  
**samantha** [2] - 4:15, 9:10  
**SAMANTHA** [15] - 4:19, 5:7, 5:16, 6:14, 7:2, 7:15, 8:2, 8:5, 8:7, 8:16, 9:2, 9:9, 10:2, 10:7, 11:12  
**SAME** [1] - 39:17  
**sandwiches** [1] - 5:18  
**SEAN** [7] - 29:14, 30:14, 31:8, 31:18, 32:13, 32:16, 35:19  
**Sean** [1] - 29:16  
**seat** [1] - 4:17  
**seating** [14] - 4:11, 7:12, 8:3, 10:17, 12:11, 19:2, 22:3, 23:12, 24:16, 27:7, 28:12, 31:18, 32:9,

32:17  
seats [4] - 10:17, 31:19, 32:9  
second [7] - 11:4, 11:5, 22:13, 22:14, 28:14, 35:14, 36:17  
see [3] - 11:11, 17:10, 21:2  
seeking [10] - 13:8, 13:17, 13:19, 14:5, 14:16, 14:19, 15:2, 15:5, 15:12, 17:8  
sent [3] - 21:3, 33:11, 36:7  
served [3] - 4:10, 23:11, 24:15  
Services [1] - 7:7  
serving [2] - 5:14, 14:6  
set [2] - 39:8, 39:10  
seven [6] - 12:10, 14:5, 22:4, 24:17, 28:12, 33:15  
several [1] - 30:4  
share [1] - 7:8  
SHEET [1] - 38:1  
sheet [2] - 38:3  
shipping [1] - 32:1  
Shiv [1] - 12:5  
Shorthand [1] - 39:14  
shy [1] - 9:11  
side [1] - 9:14  
Sign [1] - 38:3  
significant [1] - 16:9  
sink [1] - 6:16  
site [1] - 9:8  
six [2] - 14:15, 19:18  
sixth [2] - 8:6, 8:7  
small [1] - 19:14  
SMILEY [16] - 4:15, 4:19, 5:7, 5:16, 6:14, 7:2, 7:15, 8:2, 8:5, 8:7, 8:16, 9:2, 9:9, 10:2, 10:7, 11:12  
Smiley [2] - 4:6, 5:1  
soft [1] - 5:19  
sold [3] - 4:10, 23:11, 24:14  
sort [2] - 17:10, 20:2  
soups [1] - 5:18  
space [1] - 6:8  
spear [1] - 20:2  
spear-heading [1] - 20:2  
specific [1] - 15:9  
specifically [1] - 15:19  
spell [4] - 4:17, 12:14, 25:3, 34:9

Square [1] - 9:15  
ss [1] - 39:4  
ST [10] - 12:19, 13:5, 14:13, 15:1, 15:4, 17:2, 17:6, 17:16, 18:19, 22:10  
St [2] - 13:1, 13:6  
STAFF [1] - 1:11  
standard [1] - 30:16  
standing [1] - 21:5  
Starbuck's [1] - 5:17  
state [4] - 4:17, 5:5, 12:13, 25:3  
statement(s) [1] - 38:12  
stenographer [3] - 4:18, 12:14, 25:4  
step [1] - 31:9  
still [2] - 30:15, 31:9  
street [3] - 6:4, 7:2, 15:11  
Street [5] - 6:4, 6:19, 24:13, 28:9, 28:10  
structural [1] - 18:5  
struggling [1] - 30:6  
stuff [1] - 7:8  
stuffy [1] - 14:4  
style [2] - 13:18, 30:5  
subject [1] - 11:14  
submit [2] - 31:11, 34:4  
submitted [2] - 29:11, 35:12  
subscribe [1] - 38:12  
successful [2] - 15:13, 17:9  
summary [1] - 17:8  
Sushi [1] - 3:17  
sushi [1] - 31:2

### T

TAKEDA [2] - 2:3, 4:3  
Takeda [6] - 4:6, 5:9, 6:6, 8:17, 9:3, 10:15  
ten [4] - 15:18, 25:14, 26:9, 26:16  
THE [7] - 1:18, 34:8, 34:13, 39:16, 39:17, 39:17, 39:18  
therefor [1] - 38:2  
they've [2] - 6:6, 6:8  
THIS [1] - 39:16  
three [4] - 6:16, 18:4, 20:8, 22:19  
three-bay [1] - 6:16  
THRESHER [2] - 2:5, 11:18

<p><b><u>Thresher</u></b> [3] - 12:3, 22:1, 33:5  <b><u>TIME</u></b> [1] - 1:16  <b><u>TIMOTHY</u></b> [8] - 5:2, 5:3, 6:2, 7:1, 7:5, 8:6, 9:10, 11:15  <b><u>Timothy</u></b> [1] - 5:2  <b><u>TIPS</u></b> [1] - 21:8  <b><u>TO</u></b> [1] - 39:17  <b><u>today</u></b> [1] - 13:7  <b><u>tomorrow</u></b> [1] - 11:16  <b><u>tonight</u></b> [2] - 29:18, 36:11  <b><u>top</u></b> [1] - 5:9  <b><u>towards</u></b> [1] - 18:17  <b><u>traditional</u></b> [1] - 31:4  <b><u>training</u></b> [1] - 21:8  <b><u>transcript</u></b> [3] - 38:2, 38:11, 38:12  <b><u>TRANSCRIPT</u></b> [1] - 39:16  <b><u>transfer</u></b> [1] - 12:4  <b><u>transitioning</u></b> [1] - 9:8  <b><u>true</u></b> [1] - 39:9  <b><u>try</u></b> [1] - 31:14  <b><u>trying</u></b> [1] - 30:10  <b><u>Tuesday</u></b> [2] - 1:15, 3:10  <b><u>turned</u></b> [1] - 3:8  <b><u>two</u></b> [1] - 16:4</p>	<p><b><u>warmer</u></b> [1] - 6:15  <b><u>wash</u></b> [1] - 7:10  <b><u>wear</u></b> [1] - 7:10  <b><u>week</u></b> [6] - 12:10, 14:6, 22:4, 24:18, 28:12, 33:16  <b><u>weekends</u></b> [1] - 14:17  <b><u>well-known</u></b> [1] - 32:3  <b><u>WHEREOF</u></b> [1] - 39:10  <b><u>whole</u></b> [3] - 8:18, 20:3, 32:5  <b><u>William</u></b> [1] - 23:6  <b><u>Willis</u></b> [6] - 12:3, 12:15, 12:18, 13:12, 22:1  <b><u>WILLIS</u></b> [13] - 12:15, 12:17, 16:13, 18:3, 18:6, 18:7, 18:11, 18:14, 19:13, 20:1, 20:7, 20:12, 22:11  <b><u>wine</u></b> [2] - 16:14, 16:19  <b><u>WINTERGARDEN</u></b> [2] - 2:7, 23:3  <b><u>Wintergarden</u></b> [3] - 23:6, 23:17, 24:4  <b><u>wish</u></b> [1] - 27:12  <b><u>WITNESS</u></b> [1] - 39:10  <b><u>would've</u></b> [1] - 10:5  <b><u>wrap</u></b> [1] - 20:8  <b><u>written</u></b> [1] - 34:4  <b><u>www.reportersinc.com</u></b> [1] - 1:19</p>
<b><u>u</u></b>	<b><u>y</u></b>
<p><b><u>UNDER</u></b> [1] - 39:17  <b><u>unforeseen</u></b> [1] - 20:9  <b><u>uniqueness</u></b> [1] - 30:17  <b><u>UNLESS</u></b> [1] - 39:17  <b><u>Unterstein</u></b> [1] - 23:7  <b><u>up</u></b> [3] - 11:3, 20:8, 30:5  <b><u>updated</u></b> [1] - 21:4</p>	<p><b><u>year</u></b> [1] - 26:15  <b><u>years</u></b> [8] - 8:17, 9:12, 15:18, 16:4, 19:18, 25:14, 26:10, 26:16  <b><u>yogurt</u></b> [1] - 5:19</p>
<b><u>v</u></b>	
<p><b><u>vent</u></b> [1] - 18:17  <b><u>venting</u></b> [1] - 19:17  <b><u>Victualer</u></b> [2] - 4:7, 23:8  <b><u>victualer</u></b> [3] - 5:8, 10:16, 24:12  <b><u>visual</u></b> [1] - 3:5  <b><u>vote</u></b> [1] - 33:19</p>	
<b><u>w</u></b>	
<p><b><u>W-I-L-L-I-S</u></b> [2] - 12:16, 12:18  <b><u>waiting</u></b> [1] - 36:8</p>	